1: 37: 10 PM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair

HOUSE FI NANCE COW TTEE
February 17, 2014
1: 37 p. m

Stoltze called the House Finance Conmittee neeting

to order at 1:37 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

Al an Aust erman, Co-Chair
Bill Stoltze, Co-Chair
Mar k Neuman, Vice-Chair
M a Costello

Bryce Edgnon

Les Gara

David Guttenberg

Li ndsey Hol nes

Cat hy Munoz

St eve Thonpson

Tamm e W1 son

Peggy Ann MConochie, Self, Juneau; Don Habeger, Director
Division of Cor por at i ons, Business and  Professional
Li censing, Departnment of Commerce, Community and Econonic
Devel opnent; Konrad Jackson, Staff, Representative Kurt
A son; Jo Ellen Hanrahan, Deputy Conm ssioner, Departnent
of Conmerce, Community and Econom c Devel opnent.

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Patricia Senner, Al aska Nurses Association, Anchorage; Dale
Nel son, Al aska Prof ession Design Council, Anchorage.

SUMVARY

CSHB 32 (L&C)

House Fi nance Committee 1

LI NES OF BUSI NESS ON BUSI NESS LI CENSE

02/17/14 1:37 P. M



CSHB 32 (L&C) was HEARD and HELD in commttee for
further consideration.

HB 187 OCCUPATI ONAL LI CENSI NG FEES

HB 187 was HEARD and HELD in committee for
further consideration.

#hb32
HOUSE BILL NO. 32

"An Act providing for the issuance of one business
license for nultiple lines of business; and providing
for reissuance of a business license to correct a
m stake on the license."”

1: 37: 33 PM

Vi ce-Chair Neuman explained that version Y of the CS was
before the commttee for di scussion.

Representative Costello introduced her |legislation. She
noted that the bill would allow individuals who apply for a
busi ness license to list several lines of business through
the Depart nent of Conmer ce, Community and Econom c
Devel opnent. The <current practice dictated that if a
license fell into several categories, several business
licenses were required. The CS proposed a comoDn-sense
approach to licensing by allow ng applicants to receive one
busi ness license while [isting t he activities or
cat egori es.

Representative Costello nentioned another aspect of the
bill allowng a change to an application to be made during
a 30 day tine period.

Co-Chair Stoltze stated that nobst questions would be
directed to the fiscal notes. He OPENED public testinony.

1: 40: 59 PM

PEGGY ANN MCCONCCHI E, SELF, JUNEAU testified in support of
the bill. She stated that she obtained a business I|icense
as a real estate broker and was required to have a separate
business |icense for real estate education. She encouraged

House Fi nance Committee 2 02/ 17/ 14 1:37 P. M



the committee to pass the legislation, as it allowed
busi ness owners to obtain reasonabl e fees.

Co-Chair Stoltze asked if M. MConochie represented the
Nati onal Federation of Independent Business (NFIB)

Ms. MConochie replied that she was a nmenber of NFIB, but
spoke for herself in favor of the |egislation.

Co-Chair Stoltze CLOSED public testinony. He requested that

Don Habeger testify with special attention to the bill's
fiscal notes.

1:42: 33 PM

DON HABEGER, DI RECTOR, DIVISION OF CORPORATI ONS, BUSI NESS
AND  PROFESSI ONAL LI CENSI NG, DEPARTIMENT OF COMVERCE
COVMUNI TY AND ECONOM C DEVELOPMENT testified on section 3,
whi ch opened a change for the business license within the
first 30 days after the issuance. GOccasionally business
partners failed to agree about requested changes. He noted
the potential that requests in those situations mght be
subnmitted repeatedly throughout the 30-day period.

1: 45: 00 PM

Representative WIson asked if the nanme of the conpany mnust
be the same for both activities. She asked if a new |license
would be indicated if she wanted to change the business
nane.

M. Habeger replied that if a business owner had identica
owners and nane, then the legislation allowed for multiple
lines of business. He added that business partners could

apply jointly.
1:47:01 PM

Representative WIson asked about the potential for two
different businesses with different nanes. She wondered if
she woul d have two different business |icenses.

M . Habeger concurred.
Vice-Chair Neuman recalled that a brewery in Talkeetna

wanted to open a restaurant. The statute stated that you
could not owmn a brewery and then a restaurant.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 02/ 17/ 14 1:37 P. M



M . Habeger responded that if the brewery w shed to change
the license, there were licensing requirenents from other
agenci es and organi zations unrelated to business |icensing.
He noted that the professional |icensing statute required
t hat a professional license be secured prior to
adm ni strati on of another business |icense. The |egislation
addressed those businesses with the same name, interested
in multiple lines of business.

1:49: 31 PM

Co-Chair Stoltze joked that the regulation of the alcoho
i ndustry would remain as conplicated and convoluted as it
al ways had been.

M . Habeger | aughed.

1:49: 51 PM

Co-Chair Austerman asked if the goal was to help smal
busi nesses in Alaska. He asked if the legislation defined
smal | busi ness.

M . Habeger responded no.

Co-Chair Austerman provided an exanple of a native
corporation under the regional corporation and its
subsidiaries and business |licenses could beconme |unped
under one nane. He asked how many |icenses could be w apped
under one business nane. He expressed disconfort about the
| ack of paranmeters in the bill.

1: 51: 28 PM

Representative Costello responded to Co-Chair Austerman's
second question. If business name remamined the sane, the
lines of business would involve approximtely 20 different
categories. She deferred the question about higher I|evels
of categories to M. Habeger.

M. Habeger stated that a current requirenment in regulation
was for businesses to operate their activities and
advertise with their licensed business nanes. He believed
that a |arge organi zati on m ght choose to consolidate under
the corporate nanme, which would not be prohibited by the
proposed | egi sl ati on.

House Fi nance Committee 4 02/ 17/ 14 1:37 P. M



Co-Chair Austerman saw many businesses advertising under
t he Doi ng Business As (DBA) category. He discussed the need
for legislative paraneters.

1: 53: 29 PM

Representative Minoz asked if a professional and business
i cense coul d be consoli dat ed.

M. Habeger replied that the departnment had considered
consolidating the two licensing fees, but the state faced
an issue regarding the rewite of the professiona
|icensing database. The upgrade was necessary prior to
mat chi ng t he professional and business |icensing databases.

Representati ve Munoz asked i f an opportunity for
consolidation existed with the upcomng rewite of the
system

M . Habeger replied yes.

1:55: 07 PM

Representative Thonpson noticed the $37,500 drop in revenue
resulting fromthe legislation. He asked if an increase in
busi ness |icenses was projected.

M. Habeger replied t hat t he depart ment combi ned
corporations and business license activity. He believed
that the proposed changes would bring in nore revenue than
expenses.

Representative Edgnon added that the benefit sonetines
outwei ghed the cost. He stated that $37 thousand was a
small price to pay to allow conveniences to snal
busi nesses. He conmented that the native corporations and
subsidiary conpanies were careful to set up a corporate
liability for the separate businesses. He supposed that
additional |icenses would not be indicated.

1: 57: 23 PM

Representative Gara asked about businesses that sold hand-
made itens once a year at a craft fair. He opined that
operating once a year was not a "regular business" as
stated in the statute. The division considered a onetine

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 02/ 17/ 14 1:37 P. M



event a regular license. He asked if the division continued
to interpret the statute in the sane way.

M. Habeger stated no. He agreed that one tine a year was
not considered a regul ar busi ness.

1: 59: 33 PM

Representative Gara stated that he liked the bill. He knew
that | arger businesses conbined nultiple services. He spoke
about the size of a conpany. He wondered if a snall
busi ness could potentially be identified by the nunber of
enpl oyees.

Representative Costello stated that the bill's fiscal note
utilized data from 750 business license holders. She
t hought that the question mght be better directed to the
company. She understood that an el aborate business
structure or higher type Ilicense for a corporation or
Limted Liability Corporation (LLC) mght not be served
well by the legislation. The intent was to target Al askans
that applied for a business license with the intention of
providing two or nore of the specified service categories.
She requested a response from the departnent regarding the
750 people affected by the passage of the proposed
| egi sl ation.

2:02: 15 PM

Co-Chair Stoltze pointed out that many of the state's craft
fairs lasted |onger than one day. He added that nunicipa
jurisdictions often established permtting requirenents for
such events. He wished to omt the idea that the state
woul d exenpt state fair or the Al aska Federation of Natives
(AFN) vendors for their multi-day fairs.

2:03:13 PM

Representative Thonpson asked if there was a projected
reduction in the price of Al askan busi ness |icenses.

M. Habeger stated that the business |licensing fee was set
in statute and regulated by the legislature. The current
licensing fee was $50 per year and a biannual |icense for
two years was al so an option

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 02/ 17/ 14 1:37 P. M



Representative Thonpson asked about vendors that sell
honmemade itens out of their cars.

M. Habeger replied that the privilege of doing business
required a business license. He stated that additional
definitions defined business as one that vyielded a
financial benefit to the business person. He appreciated
Co-Chair Stoltze's coments regarding financial gain for
any | evel of Dbusiness.

Representative W/ son asked about the determ nation of 750
af f ect ed busi nesses.

2: 05: 45 PM

M. Habeger replied that a business license had certain
el ements required by statute. A business was not required
to report their size to the departnent. Duplicate business
names were researched in the departnent's database to
arrive at the nunber. The Iine of business was also
considered in the approximate determ nation of 750
busi nesses affected. He clarified that the figure was an
esti mat e.

2:07: 13 PM

Co-Chair Austerman pointed out the change of wording from
line of businesses to trade, service, protection or
activities. He asked if the words trade, servi ce,
protection and activities were defined in statute.

M . Habeger replied yes.

Co-Chair Austerman asked if the definitions were a
conponent of the research leading to the 750 affected
busi ness |icenses.

M. Habeger replied that the departnment searched the
database and the terns trade, service, profession or
activity provided a definition in statute.

Co-Chair Austerman stated that he would Iook wup the
stat ute.

Vi ce-Chair Neuman asked if the departnent offered fines or

penalties for Al askans doing business wthout a business
i cense.

House Fi nance Committee 7 02/ 17/ 14 1:37 P. M



M. Habeger replied that a fine limt of $300 was
established in statute for a business operating wthout a
business license. He noted that an investigation to
determine the standard was expensive for the state. A
letter citing the statute was delivered to business owners
alerting themof the |icensing requirenent.

Vice-Chair Neuman stated that the conbined |icenses m ght
prove advant ageous to the departnent.

2:10: 08 PM

Representative Edgnon asked about potential federal tax
conplications that mght arise from the establishnment of
mul ti pl e busi nesses.

M. Habeger stated that he was not famliar wth the
federal tax statutes.

Co-Chair Stoltze stated that each individual business could
deci de how to address their tax issues.

Representative Edgnon noted his support of the bill. He
offered to research the tax issue.

Co-Chair Stoltze recalled an amendnent he submitted for a
busi ness |icense fee reduction for seniors during his first
legislative term He opined that the bill would prove
advantageous to seniors. He appreciated the industrial
nat ure of Al askans.

2:13: 55 PM

Representative Gara revisited the idea of a business
license exenption for those people doing a mninmal anount
of busi ness.

M . Habeger replied that he would get back to
Representative Gara with an answer.

Co-Chair Stoltze asked if the departnent refunded |icensing
fees for businesses that did not fit the established
criteria.

M. Habeger replied stated that refunds were sonetines
of f er ed.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 02/ 17/ 14 1:37 P. M



Co-Chair Stoltze shared a story.

M. Habeger replied that businesses were offered refunds

for business and professional |icensing when required.
Co-Chair Stoltze asked about a business license for
solicitous or illegal activity. He recalled that that the

Division of Mtor Vehicles did not allow the use of
profanity when creating a personalized |icense plate.

M. Habeger replied that a business |license application
must include the |I|ine of business. The state adopted
mul tiple Iines of business.

2:18: 10 PM

Co-Chair Austerman supported the bill's intention and
wi shed to help small businesses in Al aska. He asked for a
definition of small business and w shed for additional tine
to read and analyze the bill.

Co-Chair Stoltze stated that he wshed to discuss the
fiscal note during the current hearing.

2:19:31 PM

Representative Minoz asked about non-profit organizations
with commercial |ines of business. She wondered if the non-
profits were required to have a business |icense.

M. Habeger replied that a non-profit did not require a
business license, but mny chose to have them The
financial benefit was the deciding factor. A non-profit my
or may not solicit funding through the state.

Co-Chair Stoltze clarified that M. Habeger was discussing
an intentional non-profit.

M. Habeger replied that non-profits may do service work
wi thin Al aska while funding was derived from outside of the
st at e.

Co-Chair Stoltze stated that a business that did not earn a
profit was required to purchase a business |license.

M . Habeger concurred.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 9 02/ 17/ 14 1:37 P. M



Representative Minoz asked about a retail store owned by
the non-profit organization. She wondered if the store
woul d require a business |icense.

M. Habeger replied yes, because of the financial benefit
offered to the non-profit organization through the retail
store.

2:21:30 PM

Vice-Chair Neuman stated that he appreciated the bill. He
hoped that nunicipalities m ght adopt a simlar concept. He
wondered if Representative Costello had discussed the idea
with runicipalities.

Representative Costello stated that she had an afternoon
appointment with Mayor Dan Sullivan and offered to discuss
t he issue.

Co-Chair Stoltze conmmented that Mayor Sullivan m ght not
see a financial benefit in the proposal. He cautioned that
some nunicipalities mght attenpt to benefit from the bill
by charging nore from busi nesses for municipal needs.

Co- Chai r Stoltze asked M. Habeger about pot enti al
conplications wth the fiscal not e. He noted the
anticipated reduction of $37.5 thousand. He asked how the
estimations conplicated the adjustnents.

M. Habeger explained the difficulty estimating the |eve
of activity inmpacted by HB 32. He stated that the nane
search in connection with lines of business was the optinal
way to discern the data required. He noted that each
busi ness paid $50 per year, so the 750 businesses inpacted
were spread across the years as an average.

2:25:47 PM

Co- Chair Austernman asked how nany business |icenses were
issued in the state.

M . Habeger replied approximtely 60 thousand.
Co-Chair Austerman stated that the relatively small inpact

on the overall budget made him wonder why the savings was
not spread anong all business |icenses. He wondered about

House Fi nance Conmmittee 10 02/ 17/ 14 1:37 P. M



opportunities to help all small businesses and not only
t hose wi shing to consoli date.

Representative Gara noted that rnultiple lines of businesses
exi sted on the business license application. He liked the
idea of the bill, but wondered if the bill was limted to
smal | busi nesses.

2:28: 17 PM

Vice-Chair Neuman asked about businesses that collected
taxes for cigarettes or alcohol. He wondered about tax
codes for federal or nunicipality needs.

M. Habeger replied that business licensing had an
endorsenent for retail sales of tobacco products. The
annual fee was $100 per establishnment. He was unsure about
the tax inplications.

Representative (Quttenberg asked if business insurance
requirenents would be conplicated by the proposed
| egislation. He wondered if nultiple businesses appearing
on one |license m ght confuse insurers.

Representative Costello clarified that the |legislation
woul d not require people to apply for multiple |ines under
one business name. |If the business owner would receive
greater benefit from using one nane per business, the cost
and benefit was best wei ghed.

2:31: 43 PM

Representative Cuttenberg believed the recommendati on woul d
be made by the business's insurance conpany as well.

Co-Chair Stoltze remarked that small businesses make daily
deci sions that change their risk assessnent.

Representative Costello thanked the commttee for hearing
the bill. She believed it was incunbent upon the comittee
to consider the value created in governnental efficiencies.

HB 32 was HEARD and HELD in comrittee for further
consi derati on.

2:35:12 PM
AT EASE

House Fi nance Committee 11 02/ 17/ 14 1:37 P. M



2:35:42 PM
RECONVENED

#hb187
HOUSE BI LL NO. 187

"An Act relating to professional and occupational

licensing fees, including renewal fees, duplicate
license fees, examnation fees, instructor |icense
fees, tenporary |Ilicense fees, continuing education

course certification fees, out-of-state permt fees,
del i nquency fees, application fees, penalty fees, and
trainee license fees; and providing for an effective

date."
2:35.:46 PM
KONRAD JACKSON, STAFF, REPRESENTATIVE KURT OLSON, shared
that the bill had been introduced at the request of the
Department of Conmerce, Community and Econom ¢ Devel opnent
to levelize the dramatic changes in professional |icensing

fees. The stability provided by the concept in the out
years would be of great benefit to Al askan professional
license holders. The bill's fiscal note proposed the
transfer of <costs wusing general fund dollars to cover
investigatory costs. The current costs were spread across
ot her like license holders. The investigations were
i nportant because they provided a consumer protection for
Al askans. He deened it appropriate for the consuners to
bear sonme of the cost, as the issue was related to consuner
protection.

2:38: 34 PM

JO ELLEN HANRAHAN, DEPUTY COW SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT OF
COMVERCE, COVMUNI TY AND ECONOM C DEVELOPMENT

Thank you for the opportunity to discuss HB 187

related to professional licensing fees

The purpose of the bill before you is to mtigate
spiking of the licensing program costs, and provide
alternatives for snmoothing the potential for 1|icense
fee spiking. The bill allows for:

. GF support, for investigations which at tines are

an unpredictabl e cost of consuner protection

House Fi nance Committee 12 02/ 17/ 14 1:37 P. M



o] O the 39 professional I|icensing progranms, 36
experienced at |east one year with a 25 percent or
greater change in investigative costs from 2008
t hrough 2012. The inpact on small progranms can be
significant.

o] During this same time period, the investigator
cost charged directly to licensing prograns varied
froma low of $876.0 to $1.7 mllion.

o] These variances — speak to the dramatic effect

an “outlier” year can have on licensing fees and to
t he uneven nature of investigations.

o] | nvesti gati ons are a consuner protection
function, and perhaps should really be viewed as a
public benefit as all Al askans are beneficiaries of

prof essional |icensees and their services.

. Averaging of revenue and expenses from current
and prior bienniums

. Extend the fee collection period over nultiple
bi enniums — leveling out the fees over tine

. Consolidate fee types into a single fee (ex-
license, exani nat i on, regi stration) wher e

adm nistrative efficiency could be gai ned)

These proposed changes are perm ssive, not nandatory,
and they do not reduce the authority of the boards.

As |’ve stated previously in this conmiittee, we have a
collective responsibility to bal ance the encouragenent
of a positive business climate with the requirenents
of appropriate accountability and the protection of
CONSumers. This conversation includes the push and
pull between proposed regulation, public input and
pol i cy deci sions.

This bill is a continuation of the departnent’s on-
going commtnent to address professional |icensing
i ssues, while focusing on the business clinmate and the
need to stabilize cost and establish consistency for
t he professions.

| say “on-going” as there are a nunber of efforts and
solutions the departnent has grappled with to address
the errors and issues that accunulated ,over what
records show is an eight year tinme period.

In summary, HB 187 provides tools for the boards,
conmi ssions, and the division to nodul ate professional
licensing fee adjustnents and encourage a positive
busi ness cli mate.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 13 02/ 17/ 14 1:37 P. M



2:42:54 PM

Vice-Chair Neuman asked M. Habeger if the state had
collected fees or penalties if the profession operated
wi thout a license. He wondered why the departnment spent so

much time on license enforcenent if a penalty was not
at t ached.
M . Habeger replied that professional |icensing occupied 90

percent of the departnent's investigative tine.

Vice-Chair Neuman assumed that the professional |icenses
were different than standard business |icenses.

M . Habeger agreed.

Co-Chair Stoltze asked about the legislation's process of
| eveling out expenses for licensed professionals.

Ms. Hanrahan replied that the professional |icensees would
obtain a benefit through obtaining an average of biennium
costs when calculating fees. The fee collection would be
spread over two or three biennium

Co-Chair Stoltze asked about the general fund inpact of the
proposed | egi sl ati on.

Ms. Hanrahan replied $1.8 nillion.

2:46: 48 PM

Representative WIson agreed that the |licensing boards
should not have to pay for the investigations. She asked
how many investigations were enbarked on and how many
licensed professionals were found guilty. She asked if the
departnment coll ected fees fromthose found guilty.

M. Hanrahan replied that approxinmately 1300 matters were
brought to the staff of investigators annually. The
department had 18 investigators on staff. Not all matters
resulted in a case; sonme were noved to civil authority if a
viol ation of statute occurred. The anmount fined was limted
by statute.

M. Habeger stated that the investigative processes were

established by the departnent. Conplaints nust be submtted
in witing. Regulations nust be addressed in the conplaint.

House Fi nance Committee 14 02/ 17/ 14 1:37 P. M



Evi dence nust be gathered to indicate that a violation
occurred. If the evidence was present a licensing action
woul d occur. He recalled 230 actions | ast year.

Representative WIlson clarified that 70 cases were
addressed per position, or 6 per nonth. She described a
process where those found guilty were charged the
investigation fee. She asked if the departnent enbarked on
a simlar process.

M. Habeger replied that the departnent's system had a
civil fine penalty system The departnent did not have
authority to assign an investigative fine.

Representative WIson wanted additional infornmation about
the proposed investigations. She agreed that the fees
should not be the responsibility of the board. She
requested additional details about the 80 percent of cases
reviewed. She opined that those |icensed professionals
found guilty should pay the investigation costs.

2:52: 51 PM

Representative Costello wunderstood that the information
regarding an ongoing investigation was |limted to only one
board nenber. She asked if the entire board would be privy
to the information if the |egislation passed. She thought
that the investigation would benefit from the entire
boards' judgment.

M . Habeger replied no because ultinmately a board would sit
in judgnment over the license. The Departnment of Law deened
the practice inproper to allow too nuch information to
board nenbers prior to the judgnent to preserve the rights
of the |icensee.

Representative Costello asked if the boards had weighed-in
on the | egislation.

Co-Chair Stoltze noted that two boards were present for
public testinony.

M. Habeger replied that 14 boards indicated sonme |evel of
support. Some boards had notions in their mnutes.

2:56: 04 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 15 02/ 17/ 14 1:37 P. M



Co-Chair Austerman appreciated the idea of stabilization
offered by the legislation. He opined that the Departnent
of Law should handle the investigative cost. He understood
that the single-fine system denied all restitution wthin
t he stat utes.

M. Habeger replied that a board would determne the
severity of an issue and may assign a fee structure. He
provided an exanple of a continuing education violation.
Any inconme received by the division was deposited into the
general fund.

Co-Chair Austernman asked if the discussed matrix was in
statute or regulation.

M. Habeger replied that the nmatrix was considered an
action of the board.

Co-Chair Austerman asked if the process was in statute or
regul ati on.

M. Habeger replied that Title 8 allowed the boards
jurisdiction over the |icensees.

Co-Chair Austerman asked about confidentiality in reference
to the release of information. He proposed an exanple
regardi ng nedi cal professionals in anchorage.

M. Habeger explained that the conplaint was not a public
issue until a board took an action or an accusation was
filed. An investigation for a healthcare professional,
often took tine. He stated that the one board menber privy
to information about the investigation mght advise the
division about a concerning practice issue. The public
would not be notified until the end of the investigative
process.

Co-Chair Austernman asked about the 230 cases that went to
investigation. He asked about a general fund benefit
related to convictions.

M. Habeger replied that the figure changed from year to
year. He noted that various fines were coll ected.

Co-Chair Austerman asked if the $1.8 nillion in general
funds woul d cover 100 percent of the investigation.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 16 02/ 17/ 14 1:37 P. M



M. Habeger replied that personal services tine was the

maj or issue. The total cost was approximately $2.5 mllion
per year. The last 33 percent was for the Departnent of Law
and expert Wi t nesses. The | i censees woul d assurme

responsibility for the last third.

3:02:15 PM

Co-Chair Austerman asked if M. Habeger referred to
adm ni strative per sonal services i ncl udi ng t he
conmi ssioner's office.

Ms. Hanrahan replied that the $1.8 million was specific to
the 18 investigator positions. She noted that true
investigations were distilled through a division process
beginning with the 1300 reported matters. The hesitation to
allow the public access to the information was related to
the distilling process.

Co-Chair Austerman explained that some people in small
communities were hesitant to file conplaints because of the
worry about small-town politics and public information. He
was pleased to hear about the delay in releasing
investigative information to the public.

3:03:48 PM

Representative Gara understood that the cost of the board
was borne by the nenbers in terns of fees. The
i nvestigative portion would be held over a nunber of years.

Ms. Hanrahan agreed. She proposed that the investigator
positions be funded with general funds every year.

Representative Gara asked if the board nenbers conpensated
the state for the cost of the investigation.

Ms. Hanrahan replied that the nenbers of the profession
would not conpensate the state for the <cost of the
investigators' tinme. The nenbers of the profession would
cover the cost of any nediation or expert wtness cost
associated with an investigation or the Departnment of Law
cost s.

Representative Gara clarified that the ~cost of the

investigation was transferred to the general fund wthout
an avenue for conpensati on.

House Fi nance Committee 17 02/ 17/ 14 1:37 P. M



Ms. Hanrahan stated that the cost of the investigator
positions was transferred to the general fund. The cost of
the expert wtnesses, nediations and hearings would be
borne by the professional |icensees.

Representative Gara observed the zero fiscal note. He
wondered why the $1.8 mllion was not noted on the fiscal
not e.

Ms. Hanr ahan agreed.

Representative Gara asked if the state woul d be rei nbursed.
Ms. Hanrahan replied that the general fund would not be
rei nbur sed. She noted the fund change from receipt
supported services to the general fund.

Representative Gara noted that the state was previously
conpensated with receipt supported services, but would no
| onger be conpensated for investigation costs.

3:07:34 PM

Ms. Hanrahan replied that the state would not Dbe
conpensated for the cost of the investigations.

Co-Chair Stoltze added that the fiscal note reflected the
change in fund sources.

Ms. Hanrahan concurred.

Representative Gara voi ced his confusion

Co-Chair Stoltze believed that the fiscal note was factual.
Representative Gara stated that his current understanding
was that menbers of the profession paid the cost of the
i nvestigation through receipt supported services. Wthout
the reinbursenent, he wondered how the fiscal note was
zero.

Ms. Hanrahan replied that the change led to a zero fisca
note because the operating budget showed no increase wth
t he change in fundi ng source.

3:09: 25 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 18 02/ 17/ 14 1:37 P. M



Representative Gara asked if the nenber fees would increase
to cover the cost of the investigations.

Ms. Hanrahan stated that one purpose of the |egislation was
to stabilize the licensing fees because the nenbers would
no | onger cover the cost of the investigator positions.

Co-Chair Stoltze clarified that he only wi shed to explain
t he departnent's approach, he did not endorse it.

Representative Mnoz asked if the state collected $1.8
mllion last year in fees that covered investigations.

Ms. Hanrahan explained that the statute required for
col l ection of any expense incurred by the boards.

Representative Munoz asked if the personal services expense
was $1.8 nmillion |ast year.

Ms. Hanrahan replied that the state collected fees for nore
than the costs of the investigators. The state collected
fees for the cost of processing, examnations and the
underlying infrastructure to provide the services.

Representative Minoz asked for the total cost that the
department coll ect ed.

Ms. Hanrahan agreed to provide the information.

3:11: 26 PM

PATRI CIl A SENNER, ALASKA NURSES ASSOCI ATI ON, ANCHORACE (vi a
tel econference), testified on behalf of the Al aska Nurses
Associ ati on.

The Al aska Board of Nursing licenses 11.732 Registered
Nurses, 907 Licensed Practical Nurses and 3,399
Certified MNursing Ads for a total of 16, 038
licensees. This represents about one-third of the
prof essionals receiving licenses from the D vision of
Cor por ati ons Business and Professional Licensing. This
al so neans that nurses pay about one-third of the
overhead for the Division.

The Al aska Nurses Association has no objection to the
Division's attenpt to reduce the nunber of small fees

House Fi nance Conmmittee 19 02/ 17/ 14 1:37 P. M



it collects. W also have no objection in calculating
licensing fees based on a 2-year |icense renewal cycle
rather than vyearly. W are also not opposed to
"anmortizing" individual Board expenses over a |onger
period of tinme. In order to increase efficacies and
reduce costs we thing these changes are needed.

We are however opposed to shifting the total cost of
paying for investigators form licensing fees to
general funds. In a tinme of billion dollar budget
shortfalls it does not make sense to increase the cost
to the general fund by 1.7 mllion. This bil
effectively reduces the incone comng into the State
by 1.7 mllion.

We understand that smaller Boards have difficulty
covering expensive investigations because of their
small |icensee base. W would suggest that a cheaper
alternative would be to create a fund to help pay for
expensive investigations. For instance, a fund could
be set up to pay for investigations that cost over
$10,000. There are fewer investigations that have a
| arge cost so this approach should be nmuch cheaper to
the State.

From a historical perspective, the decision to have
licensee fees pay for the cost of the Boards was nade
during a tinme of dimnishing state revenues. W do not
think that over the next several years the Division is
going to want to be reliant on a dimnishing source of
general fund revenues when they could have had a nore
steady incone source wth licensee fees. If the
Division can't get enough general funds to pay for
their investigators how are they going to prioritize
i nvestigations?

There is also some concern about what the Division
means by licensing groups. Wthin the Board of Nursing
there are many groups of |icensees, each which has a
different license fee. These fees are based in part on
the income levels of that particular group of
| icensees. For instance, the license fees for RNs are
hi gher than those of Nurse Aids. W do not want to see
all the Board of Nursing licensees |unped into one

gr oup.
3:15: 28 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 20 02/ 17/ 14 1:37 P. M



DALE NELSON, ALASKA PROFESSION DESI GN COUNCI L, ANCHORACE
(via teleconference) testified on behalf of 5000 registered
pr of essi onal s. He expressed conf usi on about t he
| egislation. He explained that the fees for his profession
doubled last vyear. He requested information to better
understand the fees collected by the state, but did not
receive an answer from the departnment. He noted concern
about the first section of the bill. He wshed to
understand where the fees were spent. He nentioned the
value of the investigator working for the board. He opined
that the bill required additional discussion.

Co-Chair Stoltze asked M. Jackson if he preferred that
menbers contact himor M. Hanrahan with questions.

3:23: 36 PM

M. Jackson stated that his office worked well wth the
depart nent. He bel i eved t hat ei t her cont act was
appropri at e.

Co-Chair Stoltze stated that M. Jackson would provide the
voi ce for discussions.

Co-Chair Austerman asked if public testinony would remain
open.

Co-Chair Stoltze replied yes.

Co-Chair Austerman asked about balancing revenues over a
two or three year cycle. He wondered about the criteria
used to establish the type of board that would encounter a
two or three year cycle. He assuned that the bill allowed
t he departnent to make the choice of cycle.

Ms. Hanrahan replied that the bill allowed the boards,
comm ssions and divisions to use the tool. The departnent
woul d approach each board with the information about fee
changes. Recommendations would be received by each board
for input in the process.

Co-Chair Austerman asked if the board would make their own
deci si ons by regul ation.

MVs. Hanrahan replied that the statute required the
departnment to have board input when setting fees.

House Fi nance Committee 21 02/ 17/ 14 1:37 P. M



Co-Chair Austerman asked if each board nmade their own
deci si on.

Ms. Hanrahan replied that the departnent had the
responsibility to regulate the recommended fee with public
i nput .

Co-Chair Austerman asked about the consolidation of certain
fee types.

Ms. Hanrahan replied that a profession may have multiple
types of fees including registration, examnation, permt
and license fees. The bill would allow for consolidation of
those fees into one fee if the board wished to gain
adm nistrative efficiencies. She noted that the departnent
tracked 457 types of fees in the professional |I|icensing
program

3:28:21 PM

Vi ce-Chair Neuman asked how nuch noney was recovered for
fees and penalties. Fees were covered by the professiona
licensing and the departnment wi shed to see the general fund
cover the cost of the investigators. He asked how nuch was
generally collected in fees as opposed to the $1.8 mllion
figure provided.

Ms. Hanrahan responded that she did not have a total
collection figure for the professional I|icensing program
She clarified that the fees were collected to support the
program

Vice-Chair Neuman asked if the fees swept into the genera
f und.

Ms. Hanrahan replied no, the fines swept into the genera
fund. The fees were collected to support the program She
stated that she would provide the total revenue in fees and
the total revenue in fines to the conmttee.

Vice-Chair Neunman asked if the fines were matched to the
cost of the investigations.

Ms. Hanrahan replied that the fines did not match up with

the cost of the investigation; they ranged from $150
t housand to $300 thousand.

House Fi nance Committee 22 02/ 17/ 14 1:37 P. M



Vi ce-Chair Neuman under st ood t hat t he pr of essi onal
i censing nmenbers covered the differential.

Ms. Hanr ahan concurr ed.

Representative Costello stated that the budget subcommttee
di scussed the issue over several years. She requested a
| ook-back over tinme of the professional |icenses and fees
assigned on an annual basis. She believed that the
information would be valuable for the commttee to solve
the problem She opined that business planning required the
licensing fee requirenents. She recalled discussion about
posting budgets online.

3:32: 03 PM

Ms. Hanrahan responded that the quarterly financial reports
wer e published online detailing expenditures.

Representative Costello asked if the |ook-back spread sheet
could al so be provided to commttee nenbers.

Ms. Hanrahan agreed to provide the spreadsheet.

3:32: 41 PM

Representative Gara asked about page 4, lines 5 - 7. He
understood that the cost to the professional group should
approximate the regulatory cost for the |icensing group. He
asked if the regulatory cost for the licensing group
i ncl uded the investigation.

Ms. Hanrahan replied that the cost of regulating the group
included the cost of the investigators. The bill |anguage
allowed for other appropriations to be included when
cal culating the fees.

Representative Gara understood that the fees charged to the
nmenbers shoul d cover the regulatory cost. He suggested that
sonme years mght require a general fund suppl enent because
of the higher cost averaged over the course of years.

Ms. Hanrahan stated that the intent of the section was to

allow the state to provide other appropriations in addition
to the program receipts. The fiscal note identified other

House Fi nance Conmmittee 23 02/ 17/ 14 1:37 P. M



appropriations linked to the cost of the personnel services
cost for the investigators on an annual basis.

Representative GQGuttenberg asked about the 42 sections of
the bill related to various occupations and licensing. He
assuned that the goal was to place all occupations on equal
footing.

3:35: 44 PM

Ms. Hanrahan replied that the equal footing was limted to
the cost of investigations for the various occupations.

Representative Quttenberg noted that the statutes for the
di fferent occupation were different.

Ms. Hanr ahan concurr ed.

Co-Chair Stoltze encouraged the departnent to spend
additional time with Representative Gara.

Representative Gara offered to revisit the issue with the
department after the conmttee neeting.

Representative Mnoz asked M. Hanrahan for additional
i nformati on about the consolidation of the occupational and
busi ness |icensing fees.

Ms. Hanrahan agreed to provide the requested information to
the conmttee.

Co- Chai r Austerman asked the departnent about t he
consolidation of fees and the supplenmentation of the
general fees collected for investigators. He wi shed to know
what the reduced fees would | ook |iKke.

Co-Chair Stoltze wished for resolution of the issue prior
to close out of the operating budget. He suggested that
nore clarity would aid the departnment in their presentation
of the | egislation.

M. Jackson offered to work with M. Hanrahan to provide
the committee with answers to their questions.

HB 187 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

House Fi nance Committee 24 02/ 17/ 14 1:37 P. M



#
ADJ OURNIVENT

3:39:51 PM

The neeting was adjourned at 3:39 p. m

House Fi nance Conmmittee 25 02/ 17/ 14 1:37 P. M



